
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
January 7, 2010, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the December 3, 2009 Board Meeting  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 


C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.   







(1) Letter (undated) from Lloyd Guccione; E-mail from Steve Mack to Lloyd 
Guccione dated 12/23/2009; E-mail response dated 12/27/2009 from 
Lloyd Guccione 


Please note: Correspondence received regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda 
is not itemized here, but will be attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and 
addressed with that item during the Board meeting. 


 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 


the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Introduction by title only of Ordinance 42, Amending Policy 


5010, Annual Organizational Meeting (Est. time: 10 minutes) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Introduction by title only of Ordinance 43, re Method of 


Approving Changes to Rates and Fees by the Board (Est. time: 10 minutes) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Status report on application for FY 2009-10 and FY 2010-11 


funding from the Russian River Redevelopment Oversight Committee/Sonoma 
County Redevelopment Agency for CIP IV-B (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
D. Discussion/Action re 6-year Capital Improvement Program (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Staff report on the FY 2010-11 Budget process and 


possible changes to District water rates and fees (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Est. time: 15 min.) 
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 40 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of 


Section 54956.9.   
  Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, et al. 
 
 B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: 14139 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and SBA Wireless Towers 
 
 C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator:  Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization:  Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 


 2







 3


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
December 3, 2009 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Wanda Smith 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent:  
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Lloyd Guccione 


 
I. CALL TO ORDER 


 
The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Victoria Wikle at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Discussion ensued.  Director Wilder moved to 
approve the Consent Calendar modified to provide that under Item III-A (November 5, 2009 
Minutes), Item V-D of the Minutes reflect that the Motion under discussion was approved.  
Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 5, 2009 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence:  (There was no correspondence.) 


 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:36 p.m.) 
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.) 


A. (6:37 p.m.) Discussion/Action re 2010 Organization Meeting / Board Elections. The 
GM introduced this item.  President Wikle made further comment.  Discussion ensued.   


 Director Wikle nominated Director Quigley to serve as President.  Director Smith 
seconded.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Nomination carried 5-0.  
Discussion ensued. 


 Director Smith nominated Director Robb-Wilder to serve as Vice-President.  Director 
Quigley seconded.  Nomination carried 5-0. 


 Director Smith nominated Director Schaap to serve as Financial Coordinator.  Director 
Robb-Wilder seconded.  Nomination carried 5-0. 


 Further discussion ensued.  Direction was given to staff to draft an ordinance changing 
the Organization Meeting to be the first meeting after the newly elected Board members 
are seated. 


B. (6:56 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Status report on application for FY 2009-10 and FY 
2010-11 funding from the Russian River Redevelopment Oversight 
Committee/Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency for CIP IV-B.  The GM provided 
a brief status report.  Discussion and questions ensued.  Public comment was made by 
Lloyd Guccione.  Further discussion ensued.  Direction was given to staff to 
communicate the final date on which the funding application would be heard by the 
County Board of Supervisors, coordinate which Board members would attend, and draft a 
list of points for the attending Board member(s) to make to the Board of Supervisors. 


C. (7:10 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Adoption by Reading of Title of Ordinance 41, 
Adding Policy Number 3510 to the District’s Policies & Procedures, Reserve Policy.  
The GM provided an overview of this item.  Public comment was made by Lloyd 
Guccione.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to adopt by reading 
of title only Ordinance 41, Adding Policy Number 3510 to the District’s Policy and 
Procedures, Reserve Policy.  Director Schaap seconded.  Brief discussion ensued.  
Motion carried 5-0.  


D. (7:16 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Staff recommendation for a policy regarding 
method of approving rates and fees.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Board discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Further Board 
discussion ensued.  Direction was given to staff to draft an ordinance to change District 
process to require a resolution, not an ordinance, to approve rates and fees.  


E. (7:32 p.m.) Discussion re causes of water loss and unknown leaks.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Public comment was made 
by Lloyd Guccione.  


F. (8:10 p.m.) Discussion re District assets.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Board discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:30 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided an overview and answered Board questions on the following subjects: 


 2







 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Rainfall 
5. Possible MRTP rehab  
6. Property ad hoc committee  
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:28 p.m.) 


 
Director Robb-Wilder announced upcoming District-related webinars. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:29 p.m.) 
 
At 8:29 p.m. President Wikle announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:32 p.m. 
the Board went into Closed Session. At 9:04 p.m., the meeting reconvened and the following 
action on the Closed Session item was announced: 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 
of Section 54956.9 


 Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, 
et al.  


  No action was taken. 
 
 B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7. 
  Property: 14139 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and SBA Wireless Towers 
  No action was taken. 
 
 C. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7. 
  Property: 14139 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and SBA Wireless Towers 
  Direction was given to the Agency Negotiator. 
 
 D. Pursuant to Gov. Code 54957 – Personnel Exception: Performance 


Evaluation: General Manager 
  The following action was taken:  The GM made a request to exercise a right 


under his employment contract, and the Board consented. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:04 p.m.) 
 
1. Capital Improvement Plan 
2. RRROC/Sonoma County Redevelopment application 
3. Draft ordinance regarding method of approving rates 
4. Lights and striping in the District parking lot 
 
Brief discussion ensued. 
 


 3







 4


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:36 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:30 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:28 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:29 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of Section 54956.9

		 Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, et al. 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:04 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: January 7, 2010 
  
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE 42, BOARD ELECTIONS 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Introduce, by reading of title only, Ordinance 42 which 
changes Board Officer election meeting to January in years in which there are newly 
elected directors seated after the December Board meeting.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Last year (December 2008) the officer elections, which District policy states is to be 
held in December, was postponed until the January 2009 meeting so that the new 
director, Jim Quigley, could participate in the Board elections.  The new director is 
seated after the first Friday of December.  Since our meetings are on the first Thursday 
of the month, in most election years that means the District meeting will happen prior 
to the new director being seated and we will have a repeat of what happened last year.  
Ordinance 42 changes the annual organizational meeting to January in years where this 
situation arises.  In years where it does not, elections will still be held at the December 
meeting.    
 







ORDINANCE NO. 42 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT REVISING  
BOARD OFFICER ELECTIONS 


 
  
  


WHEREAS, the current policy for election of Board officers has the election 
occurring at the annual organization meeting in December of each year; and 
 
WHEREAS, in years in which new directors are elected to the Board of 
Directors, those new directors are not seated until after the December Board 
meeting, thus depriving them the opportunity to vote on Board officers or be 
considered for one of the officer positions; and 
 
WHEREAS, in the past when this situation has arisen, the Board has postponed 
officer elections until the January meeting; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board desires to make this practice codified into a District 
policy.   
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
  
Section 1. Section 4050.10 of the District’s Policies and Procedures is 
changed as follows:   
 
4050.10  The officers of the District shall be appointed by the Board of Directors 
at the annual organizational meeting, as described in Section 5000.50, unless a 
particular office becomes vacant by action of the Board or operation of law, in 
which case, the Board may appoint a replacement officer at such time as the 
Board may choose.  All officers appointed by the Board shall serve at the 
pleasure of the Board.  The officers and duties will be as follows: 
 


4050.11 President:  The President of the Board shall preside over all 
meetings.  The President shall be allowed to make and second motions 
and vote on all matters before the Board.  The President will sign all 
official documents of the District and when unavailable to do so, the Vice 
President shall have that authority.  In addition, the President will have 
the authority to create committees to carry out the business of the 
district. 
 
4050.12  Vice President:  The Vice President will perform the duties of the 
President when she/he is unavailable to carry out his/her obligations. 
 
4050.13  Financial Coordinator:  The Financial Coordinator shall be 
responsible for reviewing all warrant registers prior to Board meetings, 
and shall act as a co-signee on district checking accounts which will be 
established and require two signatures for any money withdrawn from 







Ordinance No. 42. Board Elections  2 
January 7, 2010 


said accounts.  The Financial Coordinator shall function as the liaison 
between the Board and the General Manager with regard to financial 
matters before the Board. 


Section 2.  Section 4050.15 of the District’s Policies and Procedures 
is changed to read as follows:  


4050.15  Clerk of the Board (Secretary) and Auditor:  The General Manager 
shall function as the Clerk of the Board (Secretary)with regard to signing 
documents on behalf of the District.  The General Manager may appoint such 
assistant(s) as may be necessary or convenient to carry out these functions.  
The Board of Directors shall retain an independent auditor to conduct an annual 
review of district books, records and financial affairs. 


 Section 3.  Section 5000.50 of the District’s Policies and Procedures is 
changed as follows:   


 
5000.50   Annual Organizational Meeting:  The Board of Directors shall hold an 
annual organizational meeting at its regular meeting in December, except in 
years when new Directors are elected to the Board at the November regular 
election and seated after the regular December meeting.  In those years, the 
annual organizational meeting will be held at the regular January meeting.  At 
this annual meeting, the Board will select and appoint officers, as described in 
sections 4050.11 through 4050.13, from among its members to serve during the 
coming calendar year.  
 
Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) 
days after the date of its adoption by the Board of Directors.  
 
This Ordinance was introduced this 7th day of January, 2010, on roll call by the 
following vote: 
  
 Jim Quigley    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:   
 Wanda Smith:   
 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 
     
           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 





		Item V-A - Board Elections

		Item V-A.1 ORD 42 - Board Elections






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: January 7, 2010 
  
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE 43, APPROVING CHANGES TO RATES AND FEES 
BY RESOLUTION 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Introduce, by reading of title only, Ordinance 43 which 
authorizes the Board to approve District water charges by resolution.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District currently approves water rates and fees (water rates) by ordinance which 
requires an introduction at a public meeting, adoption at the next meeting, and then the 
rates become effective 30 days after adoption.  Concurrent with that process is the 
Proposition 218 process which requires noticing of all property owners 45 days prior to 
consideration of new water rates with a required public hearing, and the budget 
process, which is a multi-month effort, as well, and is the deliberation that determines 
whether there is a financial reason for changing water rates.  The District currently 
coordinates the Prop 218 process with a water rate ordinance by combining the Prop 
218 public hearing with the introduction of the water rates ordinance.  In that manner 
two required public hearings are served at one meeting.  This requires that the budget 
must be completed prior to these public hearings – water rates are based on budget 
requirements.  Coordinating the three processes is a challenge and the multi step 
ordinance procedure does not serve our customers in any significant way.   
 
Many water agencies – water districts and cities – approve water rates by resolution.  
Resolutions require only one meeting, the approved action become effective 
immediately, and the procedure, needing only one meeting, is easier to coordinate with 
Prop 218 and the budget process.   
 
The District Policies and Procedures is silent on the rate approval process but there are 
water rate and charges-related policies scattered in a number of different locations in 
the 3000’s section of the Policies and Procedures.  The attached Ordinance 43 
introduces a new section 3900 in which the recommended approval process will be 
located and, with the Policy and Procedures cleanup, existing appropriate water 
charges-related policies will be migrated. 
   
Staff recommend introduction of Ordinance 43.  Coordination with Prop 218 will be 
easier, the budget process will have one more month, if needed, and the public will be 
served at an equal, if not better, way.   







ORDINANCE NO. 43 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADDING  
POLICY NUMBER 3900 TO THE DISTRICT’S POLICY AND PROCEDURES 


ALLOWING WATER RATES TO BE SET BY RESOLUTION 
 
  
  


WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code §31007, Sweetwater Springs Water District ("District") 
is authorized to establish rates and charges ("Rates") sufficient to pay for operating 
expenses, provide for repairs and depreciation of works and pay for the principal and 
interest on debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code §31025, the District Board of Directors ("Board") is 
authorized to fix Rates, and through its General Manager collect fees necessary to operate 
and maintain District services based on those Rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, although the Board has historically adopted Rates for the provision of water 
services through the adoption of ordinances, there is no requirement that it do so; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is more expeditious and in the best interest of 
the District to establish Rates through the adoption of resolutions, in accordance with all 
applicable laws governing the establishment of, and changes to, such Rates, including 
without limitation, water capacity charges, connection fees, standby charges, and rates for 
the production, treatment and delivery of water.   
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
  
Section 1. Policy Number 3900, Charges for District Services, of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District Policy & Procedures is hereby added as follows:  
 
3900.10.  Approval of Charges for District Services by Resolution.   Rates and charges 
that are necessary or appropriate to operate and maintain the District, including rates and 
charges that are collected for providing water service and for repaying debt service, may be 
set by a duly adopted resolution, in accordance with and pursuant to all applicable laws 
governing the establishment of, and changes to, such rates and charges unless otherwise 
required to be adopted by ordinance. 
 
Section 2.  The Board declares that the operation and maintenance costs incurred by the 
District for production, treatment and distribution of potable water are not excessive and are 
directly related to actual cost of providing water service to District customers.   The Board 
also declares that the fees and charges set for repaying loans incurred for capital projects 
are directly related to the repayment of those loans.   All residential, public, commercial and 
industrial customers receiving water service from the District shall pay Rates as established 
and fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board at a Board meeting in accordance with 
applicable laws. 







Ordinance No. 43. Approval of Rates by Resolution 2 
January 7, 2010 


Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause of phrase of this Ordinance is for 
any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance.  The Board 
hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, 
sentence, clause and phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, 
subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases may be held invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
 
Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the 
date of its adoption by the Board of Directors.  
 
This Ordinance was introduced this 7th day of January, 2010, on roll call by the following 
vote: 
  
 Jim Quigley    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:    
 Wanda Smith:    
 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 
     
           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 





		Item V-B - ApprovingRatesbyResolution

		Item V-B.1 ORD 43 - Approval of Rates by Resolution






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: January 7, 2010 
  
SUBJECT: UPDATE ON REQUEST FOR GRANT FUNDING FROM THE 
RUSSIAN RIVER REDEVELOPMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE/SONOMA 
COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR CIP IV-B  
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive an update on this funding request.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Approval by the County of this grant request of $1,994,250 will fund 
approximately 75% of CIP IV-B, the Fiscal Year 2010 and 2011 capital projects of the 
District’s 2010-2015 Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  This allows the District to 
maintain reserves above District policy at a level sufficient to continue infrastructure 
improvements beyond the six-year CIP, and allows the District to delay increasing the 
Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) for at least two years. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board of Supervisors, acting as the Community Development Commission 
(CDC), consideration of this item approved the District’s funding request on 
December 15, 2009.  This allows the District to get moving on CIP IV-B, Project 1 
which is construction of Schoolhouse and Upper Schoolhouse Tanks in Monte Rio, 
replacing approximately 1,500 feet of distribution lines on Bonita Terrace in Monte 
Rio, replacement of approximately 1,600 feet of distribution lines on Riverland Road 
in Guernville, and replacement of 300 feet of feed line associated with the Handy 
Andy Booster Pump.  We expect that project to be advertised in late January/early 
February with award of contract at the March Board meeting.   
 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 7, 2010  
 
Subject:  REVIEW OF 2010-2015 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the 2010-2015 Capital 
Improvement Program.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Capital improvements are an important element of the District’s work effort.  
The District has an aging infrastructure, an unacceptable amount of unaccounted 
for water and District staff spend too much time reacting to leaks in the 
distribution system.  The District has had a strong effort to improve its 
infrastructure.  One year ago at the January 8, 2009 meeting the Board 
approved the 2010-2015 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and at the 
September 3, 2009 meeting added the Bonita Terrace element to the program 
as shown in Table 1.   
 
The capital projects in the 2010-2015 CIP are an outgrowth of the 2006-2011 
CIP.   The ranking criteria for the priority of capital projects are: 
 


• Number of leaks. 
• District time dedicated to repair the leaks. 
• Costs per Customer. 
• Potential Liability to the District. 
• Storage and booster stations based upon system requirements for fire 


flow, and storage requirements. 
• Impacts to the optimum operation of the system. 
• Elimination of as many dead-end lines as possible, which affect both 


water quality and pressure. 
 
Progress in improving District infrastructure in 2009 was marked by 
completing CIP IV-A Projects 1 and 2.  This included replacement of over 
12,000 feet of distribution lines on Monte Cristo Avenue, Riverside Drive, 
Guernewood Road, and the Monte Rio Terraces.   Approximately half the 
funding for these projects was provided by a grant from the Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency (RDA) with support from the Russian River 
Redevelopment Oversight Committee (RRROC).     
 







REVIEW OF 2010-2015 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 2  
January 7, 2010 


 


In embarking on the construction of the first two years of the 2010-2015 CIP, 
which we are calling CIP IV-B, Projects 1 and 2, District staff again 
approached the RRROC for funding assistance through the RDA.  RRROC 
suggested and supported 75% funding for CIP IV-B, which on December 15, 
2009, was approved by the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors acting as 
the Sonoma County Community Development Commission (CDC) which must 
approve all RDA funding.   
 
Staff intend to advertise CIP IV-B, Project 1 for bids in late January or early 
February 2010 with award of contract at the March or April Board meeting.  
Project 2 funding is available for FY 2011 – starting in July 2010.  It is 
conceivable that Project 2 could be started in July 2010 and finished prior to 
the winter rainy season.  This would be an acceleration of the original 
schedule for Project 2.  The originally anticipated construction start date was 
approximately April 2011.  However, the types of construction projects in 
Project 1 – two tanks – would allow staff time to oversee the overlap of 
Projects 1 and 2 in calendar year 2010.  Accelerating the construction 
schedule for CIP IV-B leaves open the question of what to do in later FY 2011 
and early FY 2012 – the summer construction season following this year’s 
construction season.   
 
The 75% grant funding received from the CDC was based on a financial 
analysis that showed the 75% level funding assistance would allow the 
District to complete the remainder of the approved CIP using 100% District 
funds.  A return to the RRROC and CDC may most effectively be based on a 
revised CIP which looks out two more years (i.e., FY 2012-2017) and would 
likely again show a need for funding assistance.   
 
The approved CIP has less that $1 million in projects for the last two years 
(2014 and 2015).  There are several needed infrastructure improvements 
which are not included in this CIP.  An update of the current CIP a year from 
now would include more projects in total, and more projects for 2014 and 
2015.  Because District revenues are not sufficient to support $1 million plus 
in annual infrastructure projects and non-designated reserves are not large 
enough, an updated financial analysis would again show the need for financial 
assistance to complete the CIP.  Staff anticipates coming back to the District 
Board in November-December 2010 to start that update of the CIP.   
 
The 2012 CIP projects include work in Western, Eastern and Northern 
Avenues and Orchard Lane – those project areas are outside the Russian 
River Redevelopment area and it is unclear whether they would be eligible for 
RDA funding assistance.  A second element is for main replacement on 
Foothill Avenue in Monte Rio which is inside the Redevelopment area.  
 
Table 2 shows two proposed schedules for CIP-related actions for the next 
two years, the current schedule and an accelerated schedule.  Following the 







REVIEW OF 2010-2015 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 3  
January 7, 2010 


 


accelerated schedule will allow the District to move up the construction 
schedule and achieve the benefits that improved infrastructure brings sooner, 
and still stay within the District’s financial and staffing constraints.  It will 
also demonstrate the District’s ability and willingness to use its own funds for 
these projects.  Staying on the current schedule is still an aggressive 
approach to solving the District’s inadequate infrastructure issues.   
 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2010-2015 CIP by Year 
Year Projects Estimated Cost
2010  CIP IV-B, Project 1   


  


Schoolhouse Tank and Upper Schoolhouse Tank (MR) – 
Construct a storage tank with a capacity of 
approximately 65,000 gallons at the top of Bonita 
Terrace, install a booster station, and connect with 
replacement reservoir at Upper Schoolhouse site. This 
pro $638,000 


  


Bonita Terrace (MR) - Replace 1,500 ft of existing main 
and appurtences on Bonita Terrace, including ties to 
Schoolhouse Tank and  Delta Way (CIP IV-A), to create a 
loop. $238,000 


  


Riverlands Road (GV) - Replace 1,600 lf of existing 
main and appurtenances in Riverlands Road, including 
two ties at Drake Road to create a loop. $393,000 


  
Riverlands Road and Bonita Terrace Pavement 
Restoration (included above) $86,500 


  


Handy Andy Booster Feed Line (GV) – Replace 300 lf of 
existing main between Hwy 116 and the booster pump 
at Old Monte Rio Road. $59,000 


     
  2010 -  CIP IV-B, Project 1 Total $1,328,000 
  75% CDC Funding $899,250 
2011   CIP IV-B, Project 2  


  


Alder Road, Pebble Way, & Heller Streets (MR) – On River 
Blvd, Alder Rd., Willow Rd., and Railroad Ave., replace 
existing mains and appurtenances with approximately 
6,000 lf of 6-inch water main, to complete loop.   $1,515,000 


  
Alder Road, Pebble Way, & Heller Streets  Pavement 
Restoration (included above) $174,000 


     
  2011 - CIP IV-B, Project 2 Total $1,515,000 
  75% CDC Project 2 Funding  $1,095,000 
  Total 75% CDC Funding Amount $1,994,250 
2012    







REVIEW OF 2010-2015 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 4  
January 7, 2010 


 


  


Western, Eastern and Northern Avenues and Orchard 
Lane (GV) -  Replace 3,100 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances. $684,000 


  


Foothill Drive (MR) – Install 1,000 lf of new 8 – inch 
main and appurtenances from B Street northwesterly 
to end of existing 8 – inch main and make connection 
to other side of Foothill where section of road is closed 
to through traffic.   $671,000 


     
  2012 Total $1,355,000 
2013    


  


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 5,800 lf of existing 
main and appurtenances commencing at the Handy 
Andy Booster and proceeding westerly. 


$936,000 


  


Canyon Seven Rd (GV) – Eliminate dead end mains 
and create loops by installing 1,950 lf of new main and 
appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd between Sequoia 
Rd and Paradise Ln.   $329,000 


     
  2013 Total $1,265,000 
2014    


  
Hidden Valley Rd (GV) – Replace 3,900 lf of existing 
main and appurtenances on Hidden Valley Rd. $656,000 


  


Guernewood Lane (GV) - – Replace 1,800 lf of existing 
main and appurtenances and abandon 200 lf of 
redundant 4 – inch main along Hwy 116. $318,000 


     
  2014 Total $974,000 
2015    


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage tank with a 
nominal capacity of approximately 120,000 gallons at the 
District – owned site on McLane Avenue. Project to include 
relocation/ construction of the existing hydro-pneumatic 
pump station. $490,000 


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 gallon 
storage tank with a 30,000 storage tank.   2005 cost 
estimate 


$190,000 


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 10,000 gallon 
tank with a 30,000 gallon storage tank.  2005 cost 
estimate 


$127,000 


  2015 Total $807,000 
     
  Total CIP $7,244,000 


 







REVIEW OF 2010-2015 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 5  
January 7, 2010 


 


 
Table 2.  Possible District CIP Schedules 


A.  Current Schedule 
Date Action 


February 2010 Advertise CIP IV-B, Project 1 
April 2010 Award Bid for CIP IV-B, Project 1, May start, September 


completion 
November 2010 Start FY 2012-2017 CIP Approval Process 
January 2011 Approve FY 2012-2017 CIP 
February 2011 Advertise CIP IV-B, Project 2 
April 2011 Award Bid for CIP IV-B, Project 2, May start, October 


completion 
May-June 2011 Request funding assistance for FY 2012-2013 CIP 


projects (2 years) 
February 2012 Advertise 2012 CIP 
April 2012 Award Bid for 2012 CIP, May start, September 


completion (possibly assisted by RDA funding) 
 


B.  Accelerated Schedule 
Date Action 


February 2010 Advertise CIP IV-B, Project 1 
April 2010 Award Bid for CIP IV-B, Project 1, May start, September 


completion 
April 2010 Advertise CIP IV-B, Project 2 
June 2010 Award Bid for CIP IV-B, Project 2, July start, November 


completion 
November 2010 Start FY 2012-2017 CIP Approval Process 
January 2011 Approve FY 2012-2017 CIP 
March 2011 Advertise 2012 CIP 
May 2011 Award Bid for 2012 CIP, June start, October completion 


(not assisted by RDA funding) 
May-June 2011 Request funding assistance for FY 2013-2014 CIP 


projects (2 years) 
     





		Meeting Date: January 7, 2010 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 7, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2010-2011 BUDGET PROCESS   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the District FY 2010-2011 
Budget process and appoint ad hoc Budget Committee to assist the General 
Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board in the past has approved its budget at the May meeting.  Table 1 
below identifies a calendar for the budget approval process.  Milestones 
include the Proposition 218 process which has a 45 day notice and a public 
hearing for increases in rates and fees.  The Board may wish to appoint an ad 
hoc committee to assist the General Manager in the development of the 
budget. 
 
As part of the RRROC funding request the Board agreed to postpone the 
planned increase in the Capital Debt Reduction Charge.  As part of the budget 
process we can analyze and discuss the need for the planned COLA water 
rates increase as well.   
 
 


Table 1.  FY 2010-2011 Budget Preparation  
Review Capital Improvement Program  January 7, 2010 


Budget Committee meetings February/March 
2010 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 4, 2010 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase, if 
necessary 


March 22, 2010 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 1, 2010 


Approve Budget 
• Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates, if 


necessary 


May 6, 2010 


 





		Meeting Date: January 7, 2010 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 7, 2010  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.  


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in November were 21,116 units 


(48.5 AF) and production was 57.2 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales 
and production are less (56.8 and 62.7 AF, respectively).   The attached 
Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving average since 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  The District spends much staff time addressing leaks and we have 


an extensive capital program to replace water mains.  In November we had 
16 total leaks and spent 94 man-hours on them.   That’s fewer leaks but 
more man-hours than last month (October) and November one year ago.    
Figure 2 shows leak history and man-hours spent dealing with leaks since 
2001 and continues to show a declining trend for both leaks and man hours.     


 
4. Rainfall.  Figure 3 is the rainfall chart for this year starting in October.  I 


have included December even though there are still 2 days left in the month 
(thus December data are based on approximate information as of December 
29).  December, so far, is below average, so the cumulative amount is close 
to last year.  Last year the poorest performing month was January – while 
this year is below average so far, a close to normal January will bring the 
year well above last year.   


   
5. Well Rehabilitations.  This past month we contracted to have the 


Guerneville Well 6 rehabilitated.  This was work we were planning for next 
fiscal year, but in November staff discovered a water leak in the piping of 
the well.  This results in a waste of power and can lead to the pipe from the 
pump breaking which can be an expensive repair.  Since a significant portion 
of the well rehabilitation is mobilization (going to the site and pulling the 
pipe and pump) which work would be needed for the pipe repair, we decided 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
January 7, 2010 


to do the well rehabilitation now, a little ahead of schedule  (and unbudgeted 
in this fiscal year).  This is the third well rehabilitation this year – one 
planned, two unplanned and unbudgeted.  Because of this, we will have no 
planned well rehabilitations in the budget for next year.   


 
6. 2005 Urban Water Management Plan.   Staff received notice from the 


California Department of Water Resources (DWR) that the submitted 2005 
Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) has several deficiencies.  A quick 
look at the UWMP comments found that correction of the deficiencies will 
take considerable staff time.  We responded to DWR that correcting the plan 
will take considerable time and that time would be better spent on the 2010 
UWMP which is due this year.  We have received a response agreeing with 
our position and thus will not be updating the 2005 UWMP.  The major 
complaint appeared to be that the District used the 2000 UWMP model which 
was changed for 2005.  The District’s UWMP still has a lot of accurate, useful 
information on District water supplies and water use history.   


 
  


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Average
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


May-
01


Nov-
01


May-
02


Nov-
02


May-
03


Nov-
03


May-
04


Nov-
04


May-
05


Nov-
05


May-
06


Nov-
06


May-
07


Nov-
07


May-
08


Nov-
08


May-
09


Nov-
09


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


40.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
January 7, 2010 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Total Pipeline Breaks 
and Hours Spent in Repair, Moving Annual Average


150


200


250


300


350


400


450


500
B


re
ak


s


1,050


1,400


1,750


2,100


2,450


2,800


3,150


3,500


H
ou


rs


Total Breaks
Total Hours
Linear (Total Hours)
Linear (Total Breaks)


-


50


100


Dec
-00


Apr-
01


Aug
-01


Dec
-01


Apr-
02


Aug
-02


Dec
-02


Apr-
03


Aug
-03


Dec
-03


Apr-
04


Aug
-04


Dec
-04


Apr-
05


Aug
-05


Dec
-05


Apr-
06


Aug
-06


Dec
-06


Apr-
07


Aug
-07


Dec
-07


Apr-
08


Aug
-08


Dec
-08


Apr-
09


Aug
-09


-


350


700


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2010







Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09 Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 2011 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2009 Water Rates Revision Completed
2009 Water Rates Changes


•        Board Direction on Rate Changes
•        Prop 218 Mailing
•        Public Hearing on Proposed Rates
•        Adopt Rates with Budget


2009-10 Budget preparation Completed
2010-11 Budget preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-09


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-09


•        Approve Budget May-09
Capital Projects


•        CIP IV-A, Project 1 Completion Completed, 
June 09


•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Construction Start May-09
•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Completion October-09
•        Phase IV-B Design January-08
•        Presentation of CIP Phase IV-B for Board 
Discussion/Action


February-08


•        RRROC for CIP IV-B July-09
•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


Water Rights Completed, 
License June 


Contract Negotiations 
•        Start Negotiations Preparation December-08
•        Negotiations Start April-10
•        End of Contract June-10


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-11


Policies and Procedures
•        Capacity Charge Policy
•        Budget Reserve Policy
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives July-09


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: January 7, 2010 



